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SUMMARY 
 
This item involves the presentation of several notable items related to the California 
Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO). A summary follows.  
 
Achievement Award 
 
The Commission recently received the “Mike Gotch Excellence in Public Service Award” 
from CALAFCO for the Commission’s role in advancing the Napa Pipe project. This 
award is named for Mike Gotch: former Assembly Member, LAFCO Commissioner, 
LAFCO Executive Officer, and CALAFCO Executive Director responsible for much of 
the foundations of LAFCO law and CALAFCO. A press release and the Commission’s 
nomination submittal for the award are included as Attachment One. 
 
The Napa Pipe Project is an outstanding example of a “smart-growth” community and of 
collaborative determination between Napa LAFCO (with special assistance from 
Commissioners Dillon and Wagenknecht), the County of Napa, the City of Napa, and 
Senator Bill Dodd to create an innovative approach to provide housing, control urban 
sprawl, and to protect agricultural land and open space. The project is a reuse of an existing 
industrial site. Senator Dodd has championed the project for over 15 years, including his 
tenure as a LAFCO Commissioner and County Supervisor. Various agency coordination 
was necessary to achieve project success, including land use regulations and assignment of 
Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). The agreement between the County and City 
provided for the City to serve as planning authority in exchange for RHNA credits assigned 
to the County. However, assignment of RHNA credits required one-time special 
legislation. Senator Dodd provided the political will for passage of the necessary 
legislation. Commissioners Dillon and Wagenknecht were instrumental in fostering the 
necessary actions required by LAFCO, since timing was a crucial factor. 
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Proclamation for Executive Director Pamela Miller 
 
On October 4, 2021, the Commission directed staff to prepare and issue a proclamation 
honoring Pamela Miller upon retirement as CALAFCO’s Executive Director. Staff 
prepared a proclamation, included as Attachment Two, which was signed by the 
Commission Chair prior to issuance to Ms. Miller. The Commission is invited to read the 
proclamation during the presentation of this item if desired.  
 
Board of Directors 
 
Vice Chair Mohler was re-elected to a third consecutive term on the CALAFCO Board of 
Directors as the Coastal Region City Member. CALAFCO Board members serve two-year 
terms and are elected by the individual LAFCOs within each of four regions (Coastal, 
Central, Northern, and Southern). Napa County is in the Coastal Region. Vice Chair 
Mohler’s current term on the CALAFCO Board expires in October 2023. A press release 
is included as Attachment Three.  
 
Coastal Region Deputy Executive Officer 
 
The Commission’s Administrative Analyst, Dawn Mittleman Longoria, was appointed to 
the position of CALAFCO Coastal Region Deputy Executive Officer. The position 
includes a budget contribution of $4,000 per year to offset staff time dedicated to 
CALAFCO business during this two-year assignment. A letter from CALAFCO 
announcing the appointment of Ms. Longoria is included as Attachment Four.  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) CALAFCO Achievement Award Press Release & Napa LAFCO’s Submitted Nomination Form 
2) Proclamation for CALAFCO Executive Director Pamela Miller 
3) Margie Mohler Re-Elected to CALAFCO Board of Directors Press Release 
4) Announcement: Dawn Mittleman Longoria Appointed as CALAFCO Coastal Region Deputy EO 
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LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 
WINS STATEWIDE AWARD 

The California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) awards 
Napa LAFCO, the City of Napa, the County of Napa, and Senator Bill Dodd the Mike Gotch 
Excellence in Public Service Award for their efforts related to the Napa Pipe Project. This 
award is named for Mike Gotch: former Assembly Member, LAFCO Executive Officer, and 
CALAFCO Executive Director responsible for much of the foundations of LAFCO law and 
CALAFCO. He is remembered as a source of great inspiration for staff and legislators from 
throughout the state. 

The Napa Pipe Project is an outstanding example of a “smart-growth” community and of 
collaborative determination between Napa LAFCO with special assistance from 
Commissioners Diane Dillon and Brad Wagenknecht, the County, the City of Napa, and 
Senator Dodd to create an innovative approach to provide housing, control urban sprawl, and 
to protect agricultural land and open space. The project is a reuse of a World War II steel 
foundry site on 150 acres along the Napa River. It will be a walkable community with 
numerous amenities to support 945 housing units (including moderate, low, and very low-
income housing), senior housing, and a school site. The project will go a long way in addressing 
Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) for the County and the City. 

With a foundation of strong policies that prioritize the protection of agricultural land and open 
space and direct urban development to the cities, a thorough Municipal Service Review and an 
updated sphere of influence, Napa LAFCO approved annexation of Phase One in 2015 with 
authorization for the City to provide a full range of municipal services to the balance of the 
project site that remained unincorporated.  

After a series of delays, it was determined that the agreed upon swapping of housing credits 
was not legal under current state law. In 2019, former LAFCO Commissioner, now Senator 
Bill Dodd, introduced Senate Bill 235 to allow a one-time swap of housing credits. Based on 
the bill, the County was allowed to claim the RHNA credit even though the property had 
already been annexed to the City. 

The bill was signed into law on October 12, 2019. Shortly thereafter, Napa LAFCO approved 
the final annexation of the remaining Napa Pipe Project territory with special conditions for 
the purpose of confirming the agreements between the County and City. One month later, the 
City and County met the conditions and the annexation of the remaining Napa Pipe territory 
became final on December 23, 2019. The project could now proceed with one land use 
authority. 

For additional information, please contact Napa LAFCO Executive Officer Brendon Freeman 
at bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov or (707) 259-8645. 

PRESS RELEASE 

Attachment One
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MARGIE MOHLER REELECTED TO THE 
CALAFCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

At the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) 
annual business meeting on October 7, 2021, Napa LAFCO Commissioner Margie Mohler 
was reelected to the CALAFCO Board of Directors representing the Coastal Region. The 
CALAFCO Coastal Region comprises 15 counties spanning from Sonoma to the north and 
Ventura to the south. 

Margie was first elected to the CALAFCO Board in October 2017, reelected to a second 
term in October 2019, and serves as the Coastal Region City Member. Margie’s third two-
year term commences immediately and expires in October 2023. 

CALAFCO was established in 1971 to assist members in fulfilling their duties to 
coordinate the orderly formation and development of governmental agencies and services. 
Key services include facilitating information sharing among members by organizing 
annual conferences and workshops as well as providing technical assistance through 
training classes. CALAFCO also serves as a resource to the Legislature and actively drafts 
and reviews new legislation. CALAFCO is divided into four geographic regions for 
purposes of elections; Central; Coastal; Northern; and Southern. Each region is responsible 
for electing four members to serve on the 16-member CALAFCO Board with 
representation from city, county, special district, and public member positions. 

For additional information, please contact Napa LAFCO Executive Officer Brendon 
Freeman at bfreeman@napa.lafco.ca.gov or (707) 259-8645. 

PRESS RELEASE 

Attachment Three
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California Association of  
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Voice 916-442-6536 
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November 12, 2021 

Ms. Diane Dillon, Chair 
Napa Local Agency Formation Commission 
1754 2nd Street, Suite C 
Napa, CA 94559 

Dear Chair Dillon: 

On behalf of the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO), we 
extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to Napa LAFCo for its continued support and 
participation in CALAFCO. 

CALAFCO relies a great deal on its volunteer Board members and regional officers to carry out 
its business and couldn’t exist without the support of its members. The Association is served by 
an Executive Officer and three Deputy Executive Officers, representing each of the four regions. 
The term of office for these positions is typically two years.   

CALAFCO is greatly honored that your Analyst II, Dawn Mittleman Longoria, has volunteered 
to serve as a CALAFCO Deputy Executive Officer, representing CALAFCO’s coastal region, 
and appreciate the support of your Executive Officer, Brendon Freeman, in Dawn’s appointment. 

The CALAFCO Board of Directors confirmed this appointment during their meeting on 
November 12, 2021.  We are pleased to welcome Dawn to the regional officer team of 
CALAFCO for the next two years.  

Sincerely, 

Pamela Miller  Stephen Lucas 
Executive Director, CALAFCO Executive Officer, CALAFCO 

Attachment Four




